
 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

1 

 

  
 

THE CITY OF POUGHKEEPSIE 

 NEW YORK 

 

ANNUAL SPECIAL INFORMATION MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

Monday, September 21, 2015  6:00 pm                   City Hall 
 

Chairman Petsas called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

This meeting is for those to ask questions in Council Chambers of the administration or 

department heads.  Questions should not be directed to the Council, as this meeting is for you to 

be informed by the administration and its staff.  Anyone who wants to speak, should sign up and 

please limit your time to no more than five (5) minutes.  All questions must be asked in a civil 

and appropriate manner. 

 

Ken Stickle-118 Catharine Street asked about the courtesy parking on Sundays for churches – 

why can’t the police come out on a Sunday if people are parked in front of a no parking sign or 

parked illegally; why can’t the police give them a ticket? 

 

Captain Minard (representing Chief Knapp): defered to the answer that has been given 

multiple times – people ask for courtesy parking for churches, and it’s being honored as a long 

standing practice. 

 

Ken Stickle: complained about the ambulances that drive down past his house with their sirens 

blaring. He has seen police and fire trucks with their lights on and no sirens, so can the city step 

in and tell them that they can’t have their sirens always going when their lights are on? 

 

Fire Chief Johnson: said they’ve contacted Mobile Life before about the issue, it’s their 

standard operating procedure to have their sirens on.  

 

Laurie Sandow- South Grand Avenue- asked why the special informational meetings are not 

advertised to the public as an opportunity to ask questions directly of the department heads and 

asks for the specific paragraph in the city charter that mandates these meetings. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: answered that the meetings are advertised to the public through general means 

of city information, through the paper, social media, the city website, as all city meetings are. 

Told her that Corporation Counsel will get her the exact paragraph within the charter.  

 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

2 

 

Laurie Sandow: claimed that the website just said ‘Special Informational Session’ and that it 

didn’t indicate that Department Heads will be present, or that the public can ask questions of the 

department heads directly.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: said that he’s sure that there is a part of the post that does in fact inform that 

the department heads will be present, and that people may ask questions of them. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked again for the section of the City Charter. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: responded that the Section of the code is 2.05. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if it specifies how this session should be described to the public. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: replied that it does. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the city website describes it that way. She said that she’s relatively 

new to the city, and that there’s no way she would know from reading the website what the 

nature of the special informational session is. Said that there’s a lot of city employees here on 

overtime on goodwill.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: informed her that these are all of the management employees, and that they are 

not here on overtime. Apologizes if it’s not on the city’s website, and that they will be informing 

the IT department that they have to follow that section of the code.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about a time stamp to the postings that the IT Department makes.  

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: said that she dates the posts when she sends them to the IT 

Department and the Poughkeepsie Journal, and that date is correct and in real time.  

 

Laurie Sandow: mentioned a post that was made the previous Monday that had a time 

discrepancy.  

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: said that she is aware of the mistake, and that it was brought to her 

attention, and that actions were taken to correct the error. 

 

Laurie Sandow: said that the date remained the same, so there was no way to know that a 

correction had been made, so she asks if there is an internal time-stamp device that notes when 

corrections are made. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: again said that yes it was a mistake that she made, but that as soon as 

the mayor signs a resolution, the public hearing is posted, and it’s always within the time frame. 

Said that there is no legal requirement for them to post it on the website, and that she legally only 

has to send it to the Poughkeepsie Journal for them to print. 

 

Laurie Sandow: said that under the open meetings law everything has to be posted a week in 

advance. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: informed her that that is not true for everything, there are different 

time constraints for different laws and meetings.  

 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

3 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about whether there is a record kept of FOIL requests, and of which 

departments and hands they each pass through. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: said that yes she keeps a log, but that she does not know if the 

individual departments keep a log on their end. The Clerk’s Office keeps all of the information 

pertaining to requests with the original initial request and log them all together. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about the normal turnaround time for a FOIL request. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: responded that there needs to be a response of receipt within five 

business days – not necessarily an answer. 

 

Laurie Sandow: said she made a request on September 3rd and has gotten no reply yet.Tthe 

request was pertaining to the property at 36 North Clover Street and the storing of construction 

vehicles there. She asked for every possible piece of information that can be had about the 

agreement between Central Hudson and the City of Poughkeepsie. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: responded that there’s no contract, but that they had a 

jobsite meeting and the city said that they could use the property to store their materials as long 

as they got the job done as quickly as possible. A number of places have allowed them access to 

their parking and ‘staging area’ to help expedite the construction. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if there’s any contract to restore the park to its original condition once 

the materials and equipment are removed from the park. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: responded that that is typically their policy – to restore 

everything to its original condition. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about the vibrations caused by the movement of heavy machinery and its 

impact on historical property, and about the damage being done. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: responded that there is no engineering evidence of any 

damage being done to the building by the use of heavy machinery. He explained that there are 

historical properties on corners in Manhattan where heavy traffic pass by every day and there’s 

no shockwaves that will damage them.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if actual engineering tests have been done.  

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: replied that no tests have been conducted because they 

are not necessary, because there is no seismic activity going on in that area.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked who is currently in possession of the FOIL request she made on 

September 3rd and when can she expect a reply.  

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: responded to her that she told her the last time she saw her that the 

information had been passed along to the appropriate channels, confirms this with Commissioner 

of Public Works Gent.  

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: said that he can make a written statement of the exact 

information he just gave Ms. Sandow, goes on to say that there is no record, and that’s why he 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

4 

 

hadn’t responded previously. She hadn’t faxed the information to Commissioner of Public 

Works Gent initially but that just a few days ago she had faxed the request over to Corporation 

Counsel because she thought that they might have information regarding the request.  

 

Laurie Sandow: continues to state that she made the request on the 3rd and that she has a time 

stamped FOIL request from that date, goes on to ask about documents submitted in the August 

24th common council meeting’s executive session and if she can make a FOIL request for them.  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: replied to her that he will not speak to the executive session 

content. Stated that the open meetings law makes an exemption in the case of the sale of real 

property because they contain sensitive and confidential information.  

 

Laurie Sandow: added that the open meetings law requires that enough information be given 

about agenda items for the public to judge and asks why the actual parcel address wasn’t 

disclosed.  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: reiterates that again, he will not and cannot speak to the 

content of the executive session and that if the information involves the sale of real property that 

information is appropriate for executive session. 

 

Laurie Sandow: said that since there were already numerous public meetings pertaining to the 

parcel and that there were promises and presentations were made and if the nature of those 

presentations and promises are being changed in executive session then the public has an interest 

in the nature of that session.  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: replied that there is certain information that is inappropriate 

for a public meeting and that is the reason that there is then an executive session that is not 

subject to public knowledge.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if there were documents submitted in that session that are subject to 

FOIL.  

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: Responded “no”.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if there were votes taken in the session that are subject 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: absolutely not, votes cannot be taken in executive session – 

votes must be made in public forum.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about the concert series at Dongan Park claiming city sponsorship and 

asks how the sponsorship was attained.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: informed her that the city is not a sponsor, and that it was a misrepresentation 

on the flyer and he called the person in charge and asked them to rectify the mistake. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the city applies fines for claims of city sponsorship when it doesn’t 

exist.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: tells her no, but that they give warning and given notice.  

 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

5 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked who applied for the permits of event and alcohol.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: informed her that there is no alcohol allowed in city parks, and told her that the 

River District would have applied for the use of the park on those dates. And then tells her that 

they would have needed to apply to the state for the ability to sell liquor and then get approval 

from the City Administrator.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if any permits been issued for those events.  

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: responded “no”.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the concerts are taking place without permits. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: told her that he spoke with the president of the River District, and informed 

him that he needed to submit an application for the event. 

 

Laurie Sandow: said that that hasn’t happened yet. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: told her that as of Friday we haven’t received one.  

 

Laurie Sandow: added that Mr. Tinkleman was described as being a sponsor as well, and asks if 

it’s appropriate for the city to accept sponsorship from a developer who is currently in 

negotiations for the purchase of the adjacent property and parcel. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: informed her again that the city is not sponsoring the concerts series, and that 

it’s the River District’s business of who they accept sponsorship from – not the city’s. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked for clarification on the money being exchanged – that it’s between the 

River District and whoever is helping to sponsor 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: confirms 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked who is paying for sanitation and security services for the events, and 

any/all other city services required 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: tells her that if overtime was required they would be required to pay, and that 

no city services are being used and that they are cleaning up after themselves – the city charges 

all events for use of the city’s services. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked again that there’s no services being given to the events that’s coming out 

of the city. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: tells her again, no because then the city would be sending them a bill and the 

City Administrator wouldn’t allow any equipment to be out unless they had paid for it. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked about police patrol of the concerts. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: told her that there’s no additional cops being put on for the event. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the IDA meeting of September 17th is taped.  



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

6 

 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: responded that, no they don’t broadcast IDA meetings. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked when minutes will be posted.  

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: told her later this week.  

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if there were documents submitted at that meeting that are subject to 

FOIL. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: responded that she scans all of the documents into the minutes. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if an independent appraisal of Wheaton has been conducted. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: told her that it has. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if that is available for FOIL or available to the public without FOIL. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the appraisal was conducted by an independent, licensed, and certified 

appraiser, what the appraisal was based on. Also asked if they’ll discover the information when 

they release the appraisal, said that she is a member of the public who is interested in the 

appraisal. She also wants to know the nature of the appraisal, the basis of the appraisal, since 

Wheaton is a contentious subject based on the promises that were made to the public and what 

actually is happening with the sale, then the appraisal is a necessary issue to discover. She asked 

if ‘that segregation’ is allowed under SEQRA, and asked about the items that were missing on 

the environmental report of Wheaton.  

  

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: responded to her that the SEQRA that was done was specific 

to the adoption of the municipal home rule law for the alienation of Wheaton Park and that there 

will be a SEQRA review for the sale, and any potential development of the parcel. The planning 

board will have to conduct their SEQRA so there will be additional SEQRA as those issues are 

considered by the boards. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if the IDA meeting of September 17th was an initial meeting, and if there 

will be more.  

 

Mayor Tkazyik: tells her that there will be further meetings of the IDA. 

 

Laurie Sandow: asked if they will be concerning the application. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackerman: informed her that there was no application regarding 36 

North Clover St, there was an informal proposal. 

 

Steven Planck, (does not give his address): asks about the union contracts. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: told him that the CSEA contracts are just being wrapped up, and hopefully 

about to settle to bring forth before the common council very soon. They’ve been in mediation 

with the police and fire departments. The fire department is getting ready to go before the 

council as well, they’re waiting for the police and water plant contracts to be ready. 

 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

7 

 

Steven Planck: doesn’t think it’s right that people come to work scared for their jobs, but also 

hope that the healthcare wants and job wants can be balanced proportionately. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: they strive for things to be fair and right and to give back. 

 

Steven Planck: thinks the equipment is ‘antiquated’ and wonders if it would help the budget at 

all to ‘digitize’ everything and streamline. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: said that the building department already has laptops. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: admits that the new technology would be nice to have 

but he doesn’t know how much time/money that would actually save the city since most of what 

they do is on the manual labor side of things, maybe it would be a little more helpful at the 

transfer station but again it isn’t very helpful in the field from his perspective. 

 

Steven Planck: wanted to know if it’s true that the guys at the transfer station have to file paper 

request for a fifteen cent fuse and if it is true does it save time and waste man power. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: tells him that when they’re spending and using taxpayer dollars everything 

requires a purchase order, regardless of the amount 

 

Steven Planck: suggests doing a little research to find out if it would save the city money rather 

than having someone sitting behind a desk and putting in these orders. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: the person who files the request is responsible for that order, there are auditors 

every day, the OSC loves the City of Poughkeepsie. 

 

Steven Planck: stated that he just thinks it would be helpful if there was a way to scan 

equipment when it was taken off the shelf before it goes into the truck so that a computer would 

recognize that however many parts were missing so it could order more automatically instead of 

having human interaction at each stage of the process, says that he’s heard that the Latino 

population is underrepresented on the police force – wants to know if it’s true and if there is 

anything being done to diversify the police force more. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: agrees that he thinks it is true but that the recruits come off of a civil exam list 

and people have to score and then pass physical and psychology exams and the exam isn’t 

coming up again for at least another three-four years, people have to be encouraged to take the 

test. 

 

Captain Minard: said that they do make efforts on a regular basis to recruit minorities and that 

they’re in the process of interviewing and some of the recruits include that population 

 

Steven Planck: wonders what’s being done to encourage them, or if it’s that they don’t want the 

job. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: sais that they reach out and do try to engage with the city kids who want to get 

a feel for it and find out what’s involved in the exams and that they provide numerous 

internships to college students who are interested so they do encourage the interest and they 

participate with all of the local colleges.  

 



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

8 

 

Steven Planck: asked if they should be addressing the fact that fire hydrants have been freezing 

up and if there’s a different system they should be using, is there anything that the fire 

department needs from the common council that they aren’t getting. 

 

Fire Chief Johnson: informed him that the fire hydrant in question was private and owned by 

the condo association and it’s their job to maintain those hydrants though the fire department 

does inspect them along with all of the city owned ones when they do their annual inspections. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: saed that it’s no secret that the water system is old and 

that they are putting millions of dollars into it to fix it, they put in a lot of money to their water 

systems and fire hydrants and have people come around to test them and they change them 

yearly, a lot of the problems come from people hitting hydrants and then the city has to get the 

insurance money to fix the hydrants, he says that it’s rarely an issue with freezing and almost 

always an issue with accidents and people hitting them and water main breaks, they are 

constantly fixing leaks and they don’t have the money for it but they have to do it anyway 

because that’s their job and there can’t be leaking water mains. 

 

Steven Planck: asked if Commissioner of Public Works Gent feels that they are well supplied. 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: said yes, but they could always have more money and 

he’d be happy with more supplies but that if they did that everywhere across the city that they 

would be broke. 

 

Steven Planck: asked where the sanitation money is going. 

 

City Administrator Bunyi: is unsure of what Mr. Planck is talking about. 

 

Steven Planck: said that the sanitation fund isn’t supposed to have a surplus or a deficit but that 

it currently has a surplus of three-quarters of a million dollars but when you look at the fund the 

money isn’t there. 

 

City Administrator Bunyi: said that they just submitted the mid-year report to the common 

council and they’re five hundred thousand in the hole. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: suggests getting together with Acting Commissioner of Finance Sorrell and 

having Mr. Planck indicate where he is getting his information from  

 

Steven Planck: said he has the information up on his website for anyone who wanted to know 

the city expenditures for the past few years. 

 

Mayor Tkazyik: restates that they can meet together with Acting Commissioner of Finance 

Sorrell at a later date to go over all of the information. 

 

Steven Planck: asked about several lights out on South Perry Street.  

 

 

Commissioner of Public Works Gent: states firmly that it is a Central Hudson issue and that 

they are working on it right now. 

 

Chairman Petsas closed the meeting, as there was no one else interested in speaking.        



 Special Informational Meeting Minutes of Monday, September 21, 2015 

9 

 

 

Dated: November 10, 2015 

 

I hereby certify that this a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Special Informational 

Meeting held on Monday, September 21, 2015 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

City Chamberlain 

 

 

 

 


